
Planning Board Agenda September 24, 2024 
Page 1 of 2 

 

PLANNING BOARD AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

TUESDAY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
September 24, 2024 – 2:00 PM 4300 S. ATLANTIC AVE., PONCE INLET, FL 

SUNSHINE LAW NOTICE FOR BOARD MEMBERS – Notice is hereby provided that one or more 
members of the Town Council or other Town Boards may attend and speak at this meeting. 

A complete copy of the materials for this agenda is available at Town Hall. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

2. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM. 

3. ADOPTION OF AGENDA. 

4. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES: 
A. July 23, 2024 

 
5. REPORT OF STAFF: 

A. Planning Division Reports 
B. Other Updates and/or Reports 

 
6. CORRESPONDENCE & DISCLOSURE OF EX-PARTE COMMUNICATION – None. 

 
7. HEARING OF CASES (Public hearings & Quasi-Judicial matters): A Quasi-Judicial decision 
entails the application of already-established criteria and general public rule or policy to a limited number of specific 
individuals, interests, properties, or activities. Certain standards of basic fairness must be adhered to in order to afford due 
process. The parties must receive notice of all hearings and be able to present evidence, cross-examine witnesses, and be 
informed of all the facts upon which a Quasi-Judicial board acts. It shall be the responsibility of the APPLICANT to ensure 
that the proposal meets all the criteria and standards established in the Land Use and Development Code for the development 
sought. Procedure for Public Hearings: 

1. Reading of the Item for the Record; 
2. Staff Testimony, including noticing information; 
3. Board Discussion; 
4. Public Discussion, including statement of Applicant(s); 
5. Boardmembers individually complete Quasi-Judicial worksheets (if applicable); 
6. Motion and Second by the Board; followed by Board discussion,and 
7. Roll-call Vote. 

 
8. BUSINESS ITEMS. 

A. Ordinance 2024-##, Amending the LUDC, Article 2 “Zoning Districts”, Section 
2.40.1 “Interpretation of Uses and Structures Permitted, Table 2-5, “Table of 
Permitted Uses”; adding farmers markets as a major special exception to the 
public-institutional zoning district 

 
 

 
 



Planning Board Agenda September 24, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 

 

B. Ordinance 2024-##, Amending Articles 3, 8, and 9 of the LUDC to substitute 
references of the Code Enforcement Board with Special Magistrate 

 
9. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION. 

 
10. BOARD DISCUSSION. 

 
11. ADJOURNMENT. 

 
 

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Planning Board with respect to any matter 
considered at a meeting or hearing, he/she will need a record of the proceedings and that for such purpose, 
may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made (at their own expense), which includes 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. Persons who require an accommodation to 
attend this meeting should contact the Ponce Inlet Town Hall at 236-2150 at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting, in order to request such assistance. 



Report to Planning Board 

Topic: Approval of Meeting Minutes 

Summary: 

Staff has prepared the attached set of Planning Board meeting minutes for 
the Board’s review and approval. 

A. July 23, 2024

Requested by: 

Ms. Stewart, Assistant Deputy Clerk 

Reviewed by: 

Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 

Approved by: 

Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: September 24, 2024 

Agenda Item:   4 



  

Planning Board Meeting Minutes July 23, 2024 Page 1 of 5 

Town of Ponce Inlet 
Planning Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
July 23, 2024 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Pursuant to proper notice, 1 
Chair Kaszuba called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. in the Council Chambers, 4300 S. Atlantic 2 
Avenue, Ponce Inlet, FL, and led attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 3 
 4 
2. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: 5 
 6 
Board members present: 7 
 Mr. Oebbecke, Seat #1- Absent 8 
 Mr. Kaszuba, Seat #2; Chair  9 
 Mr. Burge, Seat #3 - Absent 10 
 Mr. Cannon, Seat #4 11 

Mr. Carney, Seat #5; Vice Chair 12 
Mr. Revak, Alternate #1 13 
Mr. Young, Alternate #2  14 

 15 
Staff present:    16 
 Mr. Baker, Chief Building Official 17 
 Ms. Rippey, Principal Planner 18 
 Attorney Shepard, Town Attorney 19 
 Ms. Stewart, Assistant Deputy Clerk 20 
 21 
3. ADOPTION OF AGENDA:  - Mr. Cannon moved to adopt the agenda as presented; 22 
seconded by Vice-Chair Carney. The motion PASSED by consensus, 5-0.23 
 24 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  25 
 26 

A. April 23, 2024 - Chair Kaszuba stated line 133 should read “Vice-Chair Carney” 27 
instead of “Chair Carney”. 28 

 29 
Mr. Young moved to approve the April 23, 2024, meeting minutes as amended; seconded by Vice-30 
Chair Carney. The motion PASSED by consensus, 5-0 31 

 32 
B. June 4, 2024 Town Council Special Joint Meeting with Planning Board 33 

(approved by Town Council at the June 18, 2024 Town Council regular meeting) 34 
 35 
5. REPORT OF STAFF:  36 

A. Planning Division Reports – Ms. Rippey provided an update on Planning & 37 
Development Director, Mr. Lear, explaining he has been out on medical leave and Mr. Baker is 38 
Acting Planning & Development Director. She announced Volusia County is hosting a meeting on 39 
July 30, 2024, at the Ponce Inlet Community Center from 4:30 pm to 6:30 pm regarding the dune 40 
recovery project and the easement requirements. She explained staff has received an application 41 



  

Planning Board Meeting Minutes July 23, 2024 Page 2 of 5 

for an appeal regarding a permit that was approved for construction of a seawall at 125 Ponce de 42 
Leon Circle; it will be brought before the Board at the August 27, 2024 meeting. Chair Kaszuba 43 
asked how far the easements go on the beach recovery project. Ms. Rippey replied she will find 44 
out and report the information back to the Board. Mr. Revak stated he noticed a crane across from 45 
the lighthouse yesterday near the site where the proposed boatel would be located; there was a stop 46 
work order on that project; he asked if there was an update. Mr. Baker explained the stop work 47 
order was lifted; staff is waiting on an engineering report for the seawall construction. There is a 48 
permit to install floating docks; the crane Mr. Revak saw is likely for the pilings. Chair Kaszuba 49 
asked if any of that work is linked to the boatel proposal. Mr. Baker replied no applications have 50 
been submitted. The work currently being done is separate from that. 51 

 52 
B. Other Reports & Updates – There were no other updates.  53 
 54 

6. CORRESPONDENCE/DISCLOSURE OF EX-PARTE COMMUNICATION: None. 55 
 56 
7. HEARING OF CASES: None.  57 
  58 
8. BUSINESS ITEMS/PUBLIC HEARINGS:  59 
 60 

A. Ordinance 2024-XX (proposed), Amendment to LUDC Section 3.17, Docks, 61 
Boathouses, Boat Slips, and Piers. - Ms. Rippey explained this proposed ordinance was presented 62 
to the Board on April 23, 2024 when the Board requested some changes; it is back for review 63 
today. She provided a PowerPoint and a recap of the project. She noted that a 2012 code 64 
amendment to the LUDC Section 3.17 has inadvertently proven to be problematic for certain 65 
property owners with landward mean high-water lines a substantial distance from the navigable 66 
waterway. Based on an arial assessment of the riverfront, there are seven properties on the Daggett 67 
Creek branch of the Halifax River and six additional homes near the southern end of South 68 
Peninsula Drive that will benefit from this amendment. She showed aerial photographs of the area 69 
and reviewed the proposed amendment language that was changed.  She noted additional language 70 
in Section G stating the calculation for the dock size will not include the access walkway to the 71 
dock terminal platform, which should correct the issue caused by the 2012 amendment. She 72 
continued to review the requested language changes. Mr. Cannon asked if there could be a problem 73 
later by keeping the variance requirement in Section H for a substandard lot. Attorney Shepard 74 
explained there is nothing wrong with the criteria as it is written. Mr. Cannon asked if the variance 75 
criteria should be included in that sentence or if it should be removed. Attorney Shepard replied 76 
that is a policy question; however,  if there is an on-going issue with criteria that the Board and 77 
property owners continually question, then remove it. Discussion regarding the inclusion of the 78 
variance language in the criterion continued. 79 

 80 
 Chair Kaszuba commented that this will potentially affect 13 properties; he asked how 81 

many of those currently have structures. Ms. Rippey explained all but one, which is the one with 82 
the previous variance request, and they are in the process of constructing their home. Chair 83 
Kaszuba asked for clarification on why this change is needed from what was established in 2012; 84 
if it is because there have been more attempts to build on properties that people may not have 85 
thought to build on 15 years ago.  Ms. Rippey explained the mean high-water line has encroached 86 
further onto properties over time. Also, the 2012 amendment applies the dock size calculations at 87 
the mean high-water line; before that, the calculation began at the waterfront. The issue is nnow 88 

https://ponceinlet-my.sharepoint.com/:p:/g/personal/dstewart_ponce-inlet_org/EbcAFv2n5PRBvQPk2C77qsMB8daAXj4pitRrc14mcGm-Gw?e=O9UbZb


  

Planning Board Meeting Minutes July 23, 2024 Page 3 of 5 

the area over the walkways is being included into that calculation; it was not the intent of the code 89 
amendment in 2012 and is only an issue for these few homes. 90 

 91 
Mr. Cannon moved Ordinance 2024-XX, Docks, Boathouses, Boat Slips and Piers be forwarded 92 
to the Town Council with a recommendation of APPROVAL; seconded by Vice-Chair Carney.  The 93 
motion PASSED 5-0, with the following vote: Mr. Cannon – yes; Vice-Chair Carney – yes; Chair 94 
Kaszuba – yes; Mr. Revak – yes; Mr. Young – yes. 95 
 96 

B. Amendment to Planning Board Bylaws, Article III, Section 1, changing regular 97 
meeting time from 10:00 am to 2:00 pm – Ms. Rippey provided a presentation and explained this 98 
request was from the April 23, 2024 Planning Board meeting and was also discussed at the June 4, 99 
2024 Town Council Special Meeting with the Planning Board; it is a request to formally amend the 100 
Planning Board Bylaws to amend the regular meeting time for non-quasi-judicial items from 10:00 am 101 
to 2:00 pm. The scheduled meeting time for the quasi-judicial items will remain at 5:30 pm; no other 102 
changes are being initiated. Pursuant to LUDC Section 6.2.2.C, the Planning Board shall meet at 103 
regular intervals and other times as it may deem necessary. It shall adopt written bylaws and procedures 104 
necessary for the administration of its responsibilities, as consistent with the Code of Ordinances and 105 
the LUDC. Bylaws and procedures shall be approved by the Town Council; amendments or 106 
modifications to the bylaws shall be submitted to the Town Council for final approval in August. Mr. 107 
Young asked what the catalyst was for this change. Chair Kaszuba explained that a Planning Board 108 
member that is not present today requested it. 109 
 110 
Mr. Revak moved that the amendment to the Planning Board Bylaws, Article III, Section 1, 111 
changing the regular meeting time from 10:00 am to 2:00 pm be forwarded to the Town Council 112 
with a recommendation of APPROVAL; seconded by Mr. Cannon.  The motion PASSED 5-0, with 113 
the following vote: Mr. Revak – yes; Mr. Cannon – yes; Chair Kaszuba – yes; Vice-Chair Carney 114 
– yes; Mr. Young – yes. 115 
 116 

C. Training on Quasi-Judicial Proceedings – Attorney Shepard explained this 117 
training is on conducting quasi-judicial hearings on land use matters; however, if the appeal Ms. 118 
Rippey mentioned earlier goes forward, it will have its own special set of procedures. He is 119 
reviewing the code now to formulate the procedures on the appeal which is a different kind of 120 
quasi-judicial matter. His intention is to circulate a memo to the attorneys for both sides, ensure 121 
they agree on the procedures, and then provide those procedures to the Board.  122 

 123 
Attorney Shepard provided a PowerPoint presentation on conducting quasi-judicial 124 

hearings on land use matters; he explained the Planning Board is the Local Planning Agency (LPA) 125 
and is responsible for conducting the comprehensive planning program. It reviews amendments 126 
and makes recommendations to the Town Council regarding amendments; monitors the evaluation 127 
and appraisal reports; reviews the Land Use and Development Code (LUDC) for consistency; and 128 
other tasks as assigned by the Town Council. He explained the decision to make a policy or code 129 
change is legislative; once the change is made, the application of the law is quasi-judicial. Mr. 130 
Young asked if the Planning Board proposed policy or if they set policy. Attorney Shepard 131 
explained that the Planning Board proposes and recommends policy, and in most cases, it becomes 132 
the policy. There are certain decisions the Board will make that are not policy but are final unless 133 
they are appealed further, like the appeal discussed earlier. It will be a quasi-judicial proceeding; 134 
if one side or the other accepts the results of the appeal, the decision will be final. If they do not 135 
accept the results, it will go to the Town Council. The legislative hearing process involves broad 136 
notice and public input. He explained the “fairly debatable” standard of review, noting that there 137 

https://ponceinlet-my.sharepoint.com/:p:/g/personal/dstewart_ponce-inlet_org/EZH1_rOr2pxLhx39wC0ZhdMBD57DB4FjhIVIpHsMFzs2xg?e=XNV2cM
https://ponceinlet-my.sharepoint.com/:p:/g/personal/dstewart_ponce-inlet_org/EZUs3AKy6y1NvqeF-WxJbFgBAmQk4-bMiOnhMwd_eNPyag?e=rUAr20


  

Planning Board Meeting Minutes July 23, 2024 Page 4 of 5 

must be a reasonable basis to support the action, it is akin to a bar debate.  138 
 139 

Attorney Shepard explained that applying the code and the comprehensive plan is quasi-140 
judicial; this includes a rezoning or a variance. The Board cannot create new policies to govern a 141 
specific situation. The key elements of quasi-judicial are the finding of facts regarding the specific 142 
proposal and the exercise of judgement and discretion in applying adopted policies to the specific 143 
situation. He reviewed the hearing process and noted that the parties in a quasi-judicial hearing 144 
have the right to call and examine witnesses. Failure to allow that is a violation of due process 145 
rights. He continued to explain the hearing process and provided examples. Chair Kaszuba asked 146 
what happens if a Board member misses a first hearing but is present for the continued hearing. 147 
Attorney Shepard explained that since the meetings are recorded, and the physical evidence is 148 
available, theoretically, the Board member would be able to review it in advance of the second 149 
hearing so they could participate in the continued session. Vice-Chair Carney commented that 150 
some projects come before the Board and some do not; he asked who makes the decision on what 151 
gets brought to the Planning Board for approval. Attorney Shepard explained if an item is presented 152 
to the Planning Board it is because staff does not have the authority to approve it or it is being 153 
contested; or by Code that it must come before the Board. He continued the presentation, 154 
explaining which affected parties have a standing to sue. He explained burden of proof for quasi-155 
judicial matters and that quasi-judicial decisions are based on the unique set of facts for each case 156 
and do not set precedents. Attorney Shepard discussed variances and the variance standards; he 157 
stressed that all conditions must be met to grant a variance. He explained competent substantial 158 
evidence and noted that a lay person can provide fact-based evidence. Mr. Young referred to the 159 
recent Sailfish Marina project and the study that was done by an outside party and that the study 160 
did not reflect what they knew as residents to be true. Attorney Shepard replied that the Board 161 
should not be gathering evidence on their own prior to hearing a case; however, this is a small 162 
town and they do have special, individualized knowledge about certain circumstances that may 163 
not be considered by experts. He explained that that knowledge is used in the questions asked, not 164 
in the conclusion reached; he stressed that they must not substitute their own testimony for the 165 
evidence presented. 166 

 167 
Attorney Shepard continued the presentation and stated the Florida Supreme Court ruled 168 

that local governments are not required to make findings of fact to support its decision on an 169 
application for rezoning but it is a good idea in case of appeal to support the quasi-judicial decision. 170 
He reviewed ex-parte communications and provided examples of what must be disclosed and 171 
when. He explained what bias in quasi-judicial hearings is and voting conflicts of interest. Attorney 172 
Shepard explained the standard of review is limited by three issues: whether procedural due 173 
process was accorded; whether the essential requirements of the law were observed; and whether 174 
the decision was supported by competent substantial evidence. Petitions of certiorari must be filed 175 
within 30 days; after a decision is made by the Board, there are 30 days for it to be challenged. 176 
This applies to decisions such as the possible appeal discussed earlier that could then be appealed 177 
to the Town Council or decisions from this Board appealed directly to the Circuit Court. Denials 178 
must cite the legal basis for the reason. He reviewed the best practices for quasi-judicial decisions, 179 
reiterating the Board must be an objective decision-maker. He encouraged them on how to be 180 
effective Board Members, stressing the need to be well prepared for meetings and to make their 181 
final action clear. Attorney Shepard closed the presentation by explaining conditions of approval, 182 
the rational nexus test and rough proportionality test; and explained F.S. Section 70.45, exposure 183 
for unlawful exaction. Chair Kaszuba opened the discussion for questions; hearing none, he closed 184 
the discussion. 185 

 186 



  

Planning Board Meeting Minutes July 23, 2024 Page 5 of 5 

D. Discussion to reschedule the November and December Planning Board 187 
meetings – Ms. Rippey explained that November and December Planning Board meetings fall 188 
close to the Thanksgiving holiday and the Christmas holiday, so the dates are usually moved up a 189 
week. That would reschedule the Planning Board meetings to November 19, 2024, and December 190 
17, 2024. Mr. Young noted that he will be out of town that week. 191 
 192 
Mr. Cannon moved to reschedule the November 26, 2024 Planning Board meeting to November 193 
19, 2024; and the December 24, 2024 Planning Board meeting to December 17, 2024; seconded 194 
by Vice-Chair Carney. The motion PASSED 5-0, with the following vote: Mr. Cannon – yes; Vice-195 
Chair Carney – yes; Chair Kaszuba – yes; Mr. Revak; M r. Young – yes. 196 

 197 
9. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: Chair Kaszuba opened public participation – hearing none, 198 
he closed public participation. 199 
 200 
10. BOARD DISCUSSION: Mr. Cannon referred to Attorney Shephard’s presentation and 201 
reiterated that it is important that each Board member have an opinion so that the Chair understands 202 
where everyone is on a matter; they need to voice any reservations they may have or if they feel a 203 
criteria is not met. It makes it easier for a motion and decision to be made. 204 
 205 
11. ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 12:00 p.m. 206 
 207 
Prepared and submitted by, 208 
 209 
Draft 210 
Debbie Stewart 211 
Assistant Deputy Clerk 212 
 213 



 
 

 

 
Report to Planning Board 

 
Topic: Ordinance 2024-##, Amending the LUDC, Article 2 

“Zoning Districts”, Section 2.40.1 “Interpretation of 
Uses and Structures Permitted, Table 2-5 “Table of 
Permitted Uses”; adding Farmers Markets as a Major 
Special Exception to the Public-Institutional zoning 
district 

 
Summary: See staff report for additional information. 

 
For Discussion & Board Comment 
 
Or – Proposed Motion: 
 
To find that proposed Ordinance 2024-XX, Ordinance 2024-##, 
Amending the LUDC, Article 2 “Zoning Districts”, Section 2.40.1 
“Interpretation of Uses and Structures Permitted, Table 2-5 “Table of 
Permitted Uses”; adding Farmers Markets as a Major Special Exception 
to the Public-Institutional zoning district is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan, and to forward to the Town Council with a 
recommendation of approval. 

 
Requested by: Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 
 
Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: September 24, 2024 

Agenda Item:   8-A 



MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring, and fair in delivering community excellence 
while ensuring Ponce Inlet residents obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Planning Board  

From: Patty Rippey, AICP, Principal Planner 

Through: Darren Lear, AICP, Planning & Development Director 

Date: September 17, 2024 

Subject: Ord. No. 2024-XX – Amending Section 2.40 – Table of Permitted Uses in the Land 
Use and Development Code to include farmers markets as a major special exception 
use in the Public-Institutional zoning district  

MEETING DATE: September 24, 2024 

INTRODUCTION 1 
This proposed ordinance has been drafted in response to the Town Council’s directive to amend 2 
the Land Use and Development Code (LUDC) to allow farmers markets as a special exception use 3 
in the Public Institutional (P-I) zoning district. 4 

5 
AUTHORITY AND PROCESS 6 
Pursuant to LUDC Section 6.2.2.A, the Planning Board, “…serves as the local planning agency 7 
in accordance with the Community Planning Act (2011) F.S. § 163.3161 et. Seq.” Pursuant to 8 
LUDC Section 6.2.2.D. “As the local planning agency, [the Board shall] … review proposed land 9 
development regulations, determine their consistency with the comprehensive plan, and make 10 
recommendations to the town council as to whether the regulations should be adopted.”  11 

12 
Following the Board’s recommendation, the Town Council will review the ordinance. If approved 13 
on 1st reading at a public hearing, the amendment will then be scheduled for a 2nd reading at a 14 
public hearing for adoption. 15 

16 
BACKGROUND 17 
Town staff received a written request from the Ponce Inlet Community Center Board of Trustees 18 
requesting that farmers markets be added as a permitted or special exception use in the P-I zoning 19 

8-A



LUDC Amendment – Section 2.40 Permitted Uses       Page 2 
Ord. 2024-XX 
 
district. Code amendments are initiated in one of three ways: 1) sponsored or directed by a 20 
Councilmember; 2) proposed by staff to implement policies in the comprehensive plan or changes 21 
to state law; or 3) through a paid application from a member of the public.  22 
 23 
At the June 4, 2024 Special meeting with Planning Board and Town Council, the Town Council 24 
directed staff to move forward with amending the LUDC to allow farmer’s markets as a permitted 25 
special exception use in the Public-Institutional (P-I) zoning district. 26 
 27 
DISCUSSION 28 
Farmers markets are a temporary or occasional outdoor retail sale of farm produce or seafood, 29 
typically located within a parking lot or approved location in a public right-of-way closed to 30 
vehicular traffic (LUDC Section 3.20.1.A). Farmers markets are only permitted by right in the 31 
PWD zoning district and allowed as a minor special exception use in the B-1, B-2, and PUD zoning 32 
districts. In the P-I zoning classification, farmers markets are not a permitted or special exception 33 
use, although they may be allowed through a special event permit, limited to 12 times per calendar 34 
year.  35 
 36 
According to LUDC Section 6.6.3, “A special exception is a use that would not be appropriate 37 
without restriction, but which, if controlled as to number, area, location or relation to the 38 
surrounding area, would promote the public health, safety and general welfare. These uses require 39 
more comprehensive review, and by their nature may necessitate specific conditions to mitigate 40 
any potential adverse impacts. Such uses may be permitted in a zoning district as a special 41 
exception only if identified as such in this code.” The Planning Board serves as the decision-42 
making authority for minor special exceptions (LUDC Section 6.4), while major special exceptions 43 
require a recommendation from the Planning Board and approval by the Town Council. 44 
 45 
The request to add farmers markets as a special exception use to the P-I zoning district would 46 
provide additional locations for farmers markets to serve the local population. Sixteen properties 47 
within the Town limits are zoned Public-Institutional. Those properties include Town-owned 48 
facilities and parks, County-owned facilities and parks, and private scientific facilities.  49 
 50 
The Ponce Inlet Community Center Board of Trustees is in support of allowing a local farmers 51 
market to operate at the Community Center. Based on the safety, convenience and unique location, 52 
the Board has requested that farmers markets be added as a special exception use in the P-I zoning 53 
district in the LUDC, Section 2.40 Table of Permitted Uses. The Ponce Inlet Community Center 54 
is owned by the Town and is zoned P-I. 55 
 56 
The proposed amendment will add a major special exception notation, “SMJ [10]”, in the P-I zoning 57 
column in Section 2.40. of Table 2-5 (Table of Permitted Uses) under the section of the table titled 58 
“COMMUNITY FACILITIES AND PUBLIC ASSEMBLY”. Footnote [10] is included in the 59 
“SMJ” notation and is located on the last row of Table 2-5 to identify P-I zoned properties excluded 60 
from the major special exception. 61 



LUDC Amendment – Section 2.40 Permitted Uses       Page 3 
Ord. 2024-XX 
 
The six (6) P-I zoned properties proposed to be included as a major special exception are: Ponce 62 
Inlet Community Center, Ponce Inlet Fire Rescue, Timothy Pollard Memorial Park, Pacetti Hotel 63 
Museum, Ponce de Leon Lighthouse and Museum, Kay and Ayres Davies Lighthouse Park.  64 
 65 
The ten (10) P-I zoned properties proposed to be excluded from a major special exception are: 66 
Ponce Preserve, Timucuan Oaks Garden, Winter Haven Park, Public Works Facility, Ponce Inlet 67 
Historic Museum, Batelle Institute properties (S. Atlantic & Sailfish Drive), Jesse Linzy Boat 68 
Ramp, Marine Science Center, and Lighthouse Point Park.   69 
 70 
Comprehensive Plan 71 
Staff reviewed the policies of the Comprehensive Plan and found the Ordinance will maintain 72 
consistency with the Town’s desired vision and direction. The Future Land Use Element of the 73 
Comprehensive plan classifies the P-I land use category as land used for quasi-public and private 74 
activities or facilities which will serve the public interest in an educational, recreational, or 75 
scientific context. 76 
 77 
Recommendation 78 
Staff recommends Ordinance No. 2024-xx, amending Section 2.40 Table of Permitted Uses to 79 
include farmers markets as a major special exception use in the P-I zoning district excluding ten 80 
of the sixteen P-I zoned properties. 81 
 82 
Attachments 83 

1. Ponce Inlet Community Center Board of Trustees Letter 84 
2. Special meeting with Planning Board & Town Council minutes 85 

 86 



ATTACHMENT I  
PONCE INLET COMMUNITY CENTER LETTER 

 

 
  



ATTACHMENT II 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

 



















 Draft Ordinance 2024-xx 
Page 1 of 4 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-XX 1 

2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET, 3 

F L O R I D A , AMENDING THE LAND USE AND 4 

DEVELOPMENT CODE, ARTICLE 2 “ZONING DISTRICTS”, 5 

SECTION 2.40.1 “INTERPRETATON OF USES AND 6 

STRUCTURES PERMITTED”, TABLE 2-5, “TABLE OF 7 

PERMITTED USES”; ADDING FARMERS MARKETS AS A 8 

MAJOR SPECIAL EXCEPTION USE TO THE PUBLIC-9 

INSTITUTIONAL ZONING DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR 10 

CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 11 

PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 12 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 13 

14 

WHEREAS, Article 2 of the Ponce Inlet Land Use and Development Code (LUDC) 15 

establishes regulations for zoning districts and permitted uses by zoning district; and 16 

17 

WHEREAS, Section 2.40 provides a table of permitted uses and special exception uses; 18 

and 19 

20 

WHEREAS, the Ponce Inlet Community Center Board of Trustees has requested in 21 

writing that farmers markets be added as a special exception use in the Public-Institutional zoning 22 

district; and 23 

24 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has directed staff to amend the LUDC to allow farmers 25 

markets as a special exception use in the Public-Institutional zoning district; and 26 

27 

WHEREAS, the Planning Board, in its capacity as the Local Planning Agency, has 28 

determined that this Ordinance is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and has recommended 29 

approval of this Ordinance to the Town Council; and  30 

31 

WHEREAS, the Town Council affirms that this Ordinance is consistent with the 32 

Comprehensive Plan and is in the best interest of the public welfare of the Town; and  33 

34 

WHEREAS, the Town has complied with all requirements and procedures of the LUDC 35 

and Florida law in processing, noticing, and advertising this Ordinance; and  36 

37 

WHEREAS, this Ordinance is enacted under the general home rule and police powers of 38 

the Town of Ponce Inlet. 39 

40 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 41 

TOWN OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA: 42 

43 

NOTE:  Underlined words constitute additions to the Town of Ponce Inlet Land Use 44 

Development Code (LUDC) as amended by Ordinance 2024-XX, strikethrough constitutes 45 

deletions, and asterisks (***) indicate an omission from the existing text of said LUDC as 46 

8-A



         
 

 
 Draft Ordinance 2024-xx 

Page 2 of 4 

amended which is intended to remain unchanged. 47 

 48 

SECTION 1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are hereby ratified and confirmed as being 49 

true and correct and are hereby made a part of this Ordinance.  50 

 51 

SECTION 2. Incorporation of Amendments. The proposed amendments to Article 2, 52 

Section 2.40 of the Land Use and Development Code are attached to this Ordinance as Exhibit 53 

"A" and are hereby incorporated into the text of this Ordinance as though fully set forth herein 54 

verbatim as amendments to the Land Use and Development Code. 55 

 56 

SECTION 3. Codification. It is the intent of the Town Council of the Town of Ponce Inlet 57 

that the provisions of this Ordinance shall be codified. The codifier is granted broad and liberal 58 

authority in codifying the provisions of this Ordinance.  59 

 60 

SECTION 4. Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, word, or 61 

provision of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 62 

competent jurisdiction, whether for substantive, procedural, or any other reason, such portion shall 63 

be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the 64 

validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 65 

 66 

SECTION 5. Conflicts. In any case where a provision of this Ordinance is found to be in 67 

conflict with a provision of any other ordinance of this Town, this Ordinance shall prevail. 68 

 69 

SECTION 6. Effective date. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon 70 

adoption by the Town Council of the Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida. 71 

 72 

It was moved by                                and seconded by                                that said Ordinance 73 

be passed on first reading. A roll call vote of the Town Council on said motion resulted as follows: 74 

    75 

Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1     76 

   Councilmember Milano, Seat #2    77 

   Councilmember White, Seat #3    78 

   Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4    79 

   Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5     80 

 81 

Approved on first reading this ___ day of ________ 2024. 82 

 83 

It was moved by _______________ and seconded by ______________ that said Ordinance 84 

be passed on second reading. A roll call vote of the Town Council on said motion resulted as 85 

follows: 86 

    87 

Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1     88 

   Councilmember Milano, Seat #2    89 



         
 

 
 Draft Ordinance 2024-xx 

Page 3 of 4 

   Councilmember White, Seat #3    90 

   Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4    91 

   Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5     92 

 93 

Approved and adopted on second reading this ____day of   2024. 94 

 95 

  Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida: 96 

 97 

 98 

  ________________________ 99 

  Lois A. Paritsky, Mayor 100 

ATTEST: 101 

 102 

 103 

_____________________________________ 104 

Kim Cherbano, CMC 105 

Town Clerk 106 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



         
 

 
 Draft Ordinance 2024-xx 

Page 4 of 4 

EXHIBIT “A” 1 

 2 

ARTICLE 2 – ZONING DISTRICTS  3 

 4 

*** 5 

 6 

SECTION 2.40 TABLE OF PERMITTED USES 7 

 8 

2.40.1 Interpretation of uses and structures permitted. 9 

A use or structure that is not expressly permitted in a zoning district is prohibited.  10 

Table 2-5, Table of Permitted Uses  11 

USE MATRIX  

 

 P  =  Permitted use   

 

SMN  

=  Use requires minor special exception 

approval by planning board.  

 

 

SMJ  

=  Use requires major special exception 

approval by town council.  

See section 6.6.3, for Permitting Process  

 12 

 

 
 Residential  Commercial  Public and 

Open Space 

 Use 

Regulations 

Use  

R
-1

  

R
-2

  

R
-3

  

M
F

-1
  

M
F

-2
  

B
-1

  

B
-2

  

P
W

D
  

P
/I

  

C
  

P
U

D
  

 

*** 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES AND PUBLIC ASSEMBLY   

 ***             

  Farmers Market        SMN  SMN  P  SMJ[10]   SMN  Section 3.20 

 ***             

***   

[10]  Excludes Ponce Preserve, Timucuan Oaks Garden, Winter Haven Park, Public Works Facility, 

Ponce Inlet Historic Museum, Batelle Institute properties, Jesse Linzy Boat Ramp, Marine Science 

Center, and Lighthouse Point Park.  

 

 13 

*** 14 



 
 

 

 
Report to Planning Board 

 
Topic: Ordinance 2024-##, Amending Articles 3, 8, and 9 of the 

LUDC to substitute references of the Code Enforcement 
Board with Special Magistrate 

 
Summary: See staff report for additional information. 

 
For Discussion & Board Comment 
 
Or – Proposed Motion: 
 
To find that proposed Ordinance 2024-XX, Ordinance 2024-##, 
amending Articles 3, 8, and 9 of the LUDC to substitute references of the 
Code Enforcement Board with Special Magistrate is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan, and to forward to the Town Council with a 
recommendation of approval. 

 
Requested by: Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 

 
Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: September 24, 2024 

Agenda Item:   8-B 



Page 1 of 8 

MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring, and fair in delivering community excellence 

while ensuring Ponce Inlet residents obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Planning Board  

From: Darren Lear, AICP, Planning & Development Director 

Date: September 17, 2024 

Subject: Ord. No. 2024-XX – Amending Articles 3, 8, and 9 of the Land Use and Development 

Code to substitute references of the Code Enforcement Board with Special Magistrate. 

MEETING DATE: September 24, 2024 

INTRODUCTION 1 

This proposed ordinance has been developed to implement the Town Council's directive to shift 2 

from a code enforcement process utilizing an appointed volunteer board to a special magistrate 3 

enforcement process. The amendment changes these references found throughout the Land Use 4 

and Development Code (LUDC) pertaining to enforcement of land development regulations. 5 

6 

AUTHORITY AND PROCESS 7 

Chapter 162, Florida Statutes, as amended, authorizes the use of a Special Magistrate to enforce 8 

the City's codes and ordinances, “A charter county, a noncharter county, or a municipality may, 9 

by ordinance, adopt an alternate code enforcement system that gives code enforcement boards or 10 

special magistrates designated by the local governing body, or both, the authority to hold hearings 11 

and assess fines against violators of the respective county or municipal codes and ordinances. A 12 

special magistrate shall have the same status as an enforcement board under this chapter...” 13 

14 

Amendments to land development regulations require review and recommendation by the Planning 15 

Board, serving as the Local Planning Agency pursuant to the Community Planning Act F.S. § 16 

163.3161 and LUDC Sec. 6.2.2.D.1. Following the Board’s recommendation, the Town Council 17 

will review the ordinance. If it is approved on the first reading during a public hearing, the 18 

amendment will be scheduled for a second reading and adoption at a subsequent public hearing.. 19 

Changes to the code enforcement process itself will be addressed in a separate ordinance 20 

amendment to the Code of Ordinances. Both ordinances related to this enforcement transition will 21 

be presented to the Town Council together. 22 

23 

8-B



         

  

 

 
Page 2 of 8 

BACKGROUND 24 

A recent survey conducted by Town staff in June 2024 examined the approaches of 16 Volusia 25 

County agencies for prosecuting code cases. The survey revealed that the Town of Ponce Inlet is 26 

the only municipality that exclusively uses a Code Enforcement Board rather than a special 27 

magistrate or combination of the two. At the Town Council meeting on July 18, 2024, the Council 28 

directed staff to proceed with transitioning from a code enforcement process utilizing an appointed 29 

volunteer board  to a Special Magistrate enforcement process. 30 

 31 

DISCUSSION 32 

In the early 1980s, Palm Beach County and the City of West Palm Beach proposed legislation to 33 

expedite the resolution of municipal code violations, which were often delayed due to the heavy 34 

caseloads of municipal judges. This initiative led to the creation of Florida Statute Chapter 162, 35 

which outlines the code enforcement process for municipalities in Florida. 36 

In the early 2000s, further reforms were introduced to streamline the process by incorporating 37 

the role of a hearing officer, commonly referred to as a special magistrate, into the statute. Over 38 

the past two decades, a growing number of agencies have transitioned from traditional code 39 

boards to using these special magistrates to handle code enforcement matters. 40 

The special magistrate was introduced to address several concerns associated with the traditional 41 

Code Enforcement Board process, including: 42 

• Lack of Volunteers: Difficulty in recruiting and maintaining sufficient board members. 43 

• Attendance Requirements: Challenges in meeting attendance requirements for board 44 

members. 45 

• Expertise Gaps: Insufficient expertise in specific subject areas relevant to code violations. 46 

• Property Visits: Board members visiting violating properties and engaging with property 47 

owners prior to hearings. 48 

• Post-Violation Assistance: Board members personally assisting violators in correcting 49 

issues after violations were identified. 50 

• Ex-Parte Communications: Failure to properly identify and manage ex-parte 51 

communications. 52 

• Sunshine Law Violations: Issues with compliance with Sunshine Law regulations. 53 

The proposed amendments substitute references to the Code Enforcement Board with a Special 54 

Magistrate in LUCD Article 3 “Use Regulations,” Article 8 “Enforcement,” and Article 9 55 

“Definitions and Rules of Interpretation.” 56 

 57 

Comprehensive Plan 58 

Staff reviewed the policies of the Comprehensive Plan and found the proposed amendments will 59 

not conflict with any goal, objective, or policy, and will maintain consistency with the Town’s 60 

desired vision and direction.  61 

 62 

Recommendation 63 

Staff recommends Ordinance No. 2024-xx, amending Articles 3, 8, and 9 of the LUDC to 64 

substitute references of the Code Enforcement Board with Special Magistrate.65 



         

  

 

 
 Draft Ordinance 2024-xx 

Page 3 of 8 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-XX 1 

 2 

  AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET, 3 

F L O R I D A , AMENDING THE LAND USE AND 4 

DEVELOPMENT CODE, ARTICLE 3 “USE REGULATIONS”,  5 

ARTICLE 8  “ENFORCEMENT” AND ARTICLE 9 6 

“DEFINTIONS AND RULES OF INTERPRETATION” TO 7 

REPLACE REFERENCES TO THE "CODE ENFORCEMENT 8 

BOARD" WITH "SPECIAL MAGISTRATE"; PROVIDING 9 

FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; 10 

AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 11 
 12 

WHEREAS, Articles 3, 8 and 9 of the Ponce Inlet Land Use and Development Code 13 

(LUDC) define the code enforcement board and certain enforcement functions granted to them; 14 

and 15 

WHEREAS, Chapter 162, Florida Statutes, as amended, authorizes the use of a Special 16 

Magistrate to enforce a local government’s  codes and ordinances; and 17 

 18 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has directed staff to transition from the Code Enforcement 19 

Board to a Special Magistrate; and 20 

 21 

WHEREAS, before this transition can occur, it is necessary to amend the LUDC to replace 22 

all references to the “Code Enforcement Board” with “Special Magistrate”; and  23 

 24 

WHEREAS, the Planning Board, in its capacity as the Local Planning Agency, has 25 

determined that this Ordinance is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and has recommended 26 

approval of this Ordinance to the Town Council; and  27 

 28 

WHEREAS, the Town Council affirms that this Ordinance is consistent with the 29 

Comprehensive Plan and is in the best interest of the public welfare of the Town; and  30 

 31 

WHEREAS, the Town has complied with all requirements and procedures of the LUDC 32 

and Florida law in processing, noticing, and advertising this Ordinance; and  33 

 34 

WHEREAS, this Ordinance is enacted under the general home rule and police powers of 35 

the Town of Ponce Inlet. 36 

 37 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 38 

TOWN OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA: 39 

 40 

NOTE:  Underlined words constitute additions to the Town of Ponce Inlet Land Use 41 

Development Code (LUDC) as amended by Ordinance 2024-XX, strikethrough constitutes 42 

deletions, and asterisks (***) indicate an omission from the existing text of said LUDC as 43 

amended which is intended to remain unchanged. 44 

 45 

30



         

  

 

 
 Draft Ordinance 2024-xx 

Page 4 of 8 

SECTION 1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are hereby ratified and confirmed as being 46 

true and correct and are hereby made a part of this Ordinance.  47 

 48 

SECTION 2. Incorporation of Amendments. The proposed amendments to Articles 3, 49 

8, and 9 of the LUDC are attached to this Ordinance as Exhibit "A" and are hereby incorporated 50 

into the text of this Ordinance as though fully set forth herein verbatim as amendments to the 51 

LUDC. 52 

 53 

SECTION 3. Codification. It is the intent of the Town Council of the Town of Ponce Inlet 54 

that the provisions of this Ordinance shall be codified. The codifier is granted broad and liberal 55 

authority in codifying the provisions of this Ordinance.  56 

 57 

SECTION 4. Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, word, or 58 

provision of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 59 

competent jurisdiction, whether for substantive, procedural, or any other reason, such portion shall 60 

be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the 61 

validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 62 

 63 

SECTION 5. Conflicts. In any case where a provision of this Ordinance is found to be in 64 

conflict with a provision of any other ordinance of this Town, this Ordinance shall prevail. 65 

 66 

SECTION 6. Effective date. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon 67 

adoption by the Town Council of the Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida. 68 

 69 

It was moved by                                and seconded by                                that said Ordinance 70 

be passed on first reading. A roll call vote of the Town Council on said motion resulted as follows: 71 

    72 

Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1     73 

   Councilmember Milano, Seat #2    74 

   Councilmember White, Seat #3    75 

   Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4    76 

   Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5     77 

 78 

Approved on first reading this ___ day of ________ 2024. 79 

 80 

It was moved by _______________ and seconded by ______________ that said Ordinance 81 

be passed on second reading. A roll call vote of the Town Council on said motion resulted as 82 

follows: 83 

    84 

Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1     85 

   Councilmember Milano, Seat #2    86 

   Councilmember White, Seat #3    87 

31



         

  

 

 
 Draft Ordinance 2024-xx 

Page 5 of 8 

   Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4    88 

   Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5     89 

 90 

Approved and adopted on second reading this ____day of   2024. 91 

 92 

  Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida: 93 

 94 

 95 

  ________________________ 96 

  Lois A. Paritsky, Mayor 97 

ATTEST: 98 

 99 

 100 

_____________________________________ 101 

Kim Cherbano, CMC 102 

Town Clerk 103 

  

  

  

  

  

32



 

ATTACHMENT 1 

DRAFT ORDINANCE NO. 2024-XX 

 

 

 

 EXHIBIT “A” 

  

AMENDMENTS TO ARTICLES 3, 8 AND 9.  

Articles 3, 8 and 9 of the Town of Ponce Inlet Land Use Development Code, are hereby amended 

to read as follows:  

 

ARTICLE 3 USE REGULATIONS 

SECTION 3.18. DWELLING RENTALS 

* * * 

3.18.4 General regulations. 

The following regulations shall pertain to the rental of dwellings:  

A. A contact person must be available 24 hours per day, seven days per week to respond 

to complaints regarding the conduct of the occupants of the subject dwelling.  

B. Occupancy of individual units shall conform to the occupancy limits of all applicable 

building codes.  

C. The owner or manager shall maintain a tenant and vehicle registration that includes the 

name and address of each unit's tenant and the make, year and tag number of the 

tenant's vehicle.  

D. There shall be a written lease between the owner and tenant and that includes an 

explicit statement that the tenant agrees to follow these regulations.  

E. Violation of these provisions may result in revocation of the rental permit for cause, 

upon notice and opportunity to be heard by the town council and subject to prosecution 

before the code enforcement boardspecial magistrate, and any other penalties, as 

provided for in section 3.18.6 below.  

F. The rental permit application shall be filed with the town prior to rental of the subject 

property.  

 

* * * 

 

3.18.7 Annual reporting requirements. 

A. Annual summary report. 

1. An annual summary report must be filed by:  

2. All licensed real estate agents, brokers, agents or other parties who represent an 

owner of a property rented at any time during a calendar year; and  

3. All owners of dwellings rented at any time during a calendar year.  

4. The summary report is due by February 1 of each year.  

33



         

  

 

 
 Draft Ordinance 2024-xx 

Page 7 of 8 

5. The report shall reflect the rental activities of all subject dwellings within the town 

for the previous calendar year. This report shall include, at a minimum, the address 

of subject property and length of rental period per tenant.  

6. The town shall maintain a third-party rental summary report form and make it 

available to the public upon request.  

7. Violation of this requirement subjects violators to prosecution before the code 

enforcement boardspecial magistrate and other penalties in section 3.18.6.  

 

* * * 

 

SECTION 3.34 MOBILE FOOD VENDORS 

* * * 

 

B. Temporary use permit. A mobile food vendor shall be required to obtain a temporary use 

permit, pursuant to LUDC Sec. 6.6.17, prior to operating on any property within the town, 

subject to the following:  

1. Duration. Temporary use permits shall be valid for the duration of time specified 

pursuant to 6.6.17.F. (Expiration).  

2. Permit revocation. In addition to the provisions of section 6.6.17.H.1, a temporary use 

permit for a mobile food vendor may be revoked by the town for any one of the 

following violations:  

a. Operating outside of the approved mobile food vending site.  

b. Operating without the required state licenses.  

c. Creating a public nuisance as defined in this code.  

3. Violation and penalties. No person shall violate the provisions of this section, nor shall 

any person fail to comply with all state and town laws, codes, ordinances, rules, or 

regulations. The code enforcement boardspecial magistrate shall have jurisdiction to 

enforce these provisions pursuant to F.S. Ch. 162 and this code. Any person 

determined to be in violation will be subject to penalties and remedies available as 

provided by law.  

* * * 

 

(Ord. No. 2022-07, § 2, 11-17-2022) 

 

ARTICLE 8 ENFORCEMENT 

SECTION 8.2. ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURES AND PENALTIES 

* * * 

34



         

  

 

 
 Draft Ordinance 2024-xx 

Page 8 of 8 

 

8.2.2 Enforcement penalties. 

Any person who violates any provision of the LUDC, fails to secure a permit or certificate 

of occupancy as required by the LUDC, or fails to comply with any order issued by the 

authorities set forth in section 8.1.2, is punishable in accordance with section 1-11 of the Code of 

Ordinances. Penalties shall be assessed upon finding of violation by the code enforcement 

boardspecial magistrate or any court of competent jurisdiction.  

 

* * * 

 

ARTICLE 9 DEFINITIONS AND RULES OF INTERPRETATION 

 

SECTION 9.4. DEFINITIONS 

* * * 

Code enforcement board. The code enforcement board of the Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida. 

See Code of Ordinances chapter 2, article V.  

 

* * * 

       Special magistrate.  The code enforcement special magistrate appointed by the town council 

to serve in lieu of a code enforcement board to hear and decide code violations under this section 

and F.S. ch. 162.   

 

* * * 

 

35


	09-24-24 Planning Bd agenda
	4  Cover
	07-23-2024 PB minutes
	8-A cover
	8-A1  Combined Staff Report and Minutes
	Staff Report PB PI SE Farmers market - FINAL1
	6-04-2024 Spec PB & TC mtg minutes - Approved

	8-A2 Ord 2024-XX SEU Farmers Mkt-PB 9.24.2024 - FINAL
	8-B cover
	8-B1  Staff Report PB special mag - Final (2)



